
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
EASTERN DISTRICT OF TENNESSEE 

AT KNOXVILLE 
 
 
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA ,   ) 

      ) 
  Plaintiff,   )  
      )   

v.       ) No. 3:10-cr-00094-001 
       ) Hon. H. Bruce Guyton, USMJ  
JEAN T. GUMP, et al.,     )  
       ) 
   Defendants.   )  
       
 

SENTENCING MEMORANDUM OF THE 
DEFENDANT JEAN T. GUMP 

 
 

 The Defendant JEAN T. GUMP, appears before the Court for sentencing, having been 

convicted by a jury of the Class A misdemeanor charged against  her, willfully and without 

authorization entering property of the National Nuclear Security Administration, in violation of 

42 U.S.C. § 2278a(c), 10 C.F.R. §§ 860.3, 860.5(b).  The maximum sentence for this offense is 

imprisonment for one year, a $100,000 fine, a term of supervised release of one year, and a 

mandatory assessment of $25.00.  Undersigned counsel has Ms. Gump’s check in the amount of 

$25.00 for delivery to the Court’s Clerk. 

 The Court has before it a Presentence Investigation Report.  This report states a 

Guidelines advisory range of a term of imprisonment of zero to six months.  It states also that 

Ms. Gump is eligible for probation in this case.  Neither the Government nor Ms. Gump has any 

objection to the Presentence Investigation Report. 
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 Jean Gump has been subject to conditions of supervised release since July 6, 2010 [see 

Doc. 4 in no. 3:10-mj-02074], now over a year ago.  Her compliance with the conditions 

imposed on her has been impeccable. 

 From May 11, 2011 through June 9, 2011, a period of almost one month, Ms. Gump was 

incarcerated in this case, pursuant to her voluntary surrender.  During this month of her life, 

this 84-year-old wife, mother and grandmother endured overcrowding, a dangerous delay in 

receiving necessary, prescribed medication for her high blood pressure, and transportation for 

hundreds of miles, to Ocilla, Georgia. 

 It was undisputed at trial that Ms. Gump and her co-Defendants engaged in a nonviolent 

protest that caused no personal injury or vandalism or other property damage.  As the 

Presentence Investigation Report states, restitution is not an issue in this case.   

 Jean Gump is beloved in her community, which exists in many parts of the United 

States.  The Court has received a great number of letters in support of her and her co-

Defendants [see Docs. 151, 163, 166, 169, 170, 171, 177, 178, 179, 185, 186, 187, 191, 192, 193, 

194, 195, 196, 202, 210, 211, 212, 215, 216, 217, 218 and 219].  Submitted with this Sentencing 

Memorandum are even more of these letters, beginning with Ms. Gump’s own statement to 

the Court. 

 Of the 18 U.S.C. § 3553(a)(2) purposes, rehabilitation, § 3553(a)(2)(D), has no 

application in this case.  Ms. Gump, a retired person, does not need “educational or vocational 

training,... or other correctional treatment” from the Bureau of Prisons.  As she has discovered, 

adequate “medical care” is rarely to be found behind prison walls. 
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 Consideration of the remaining purposes of punishment, § 3553(a)(2)(A) through (C), 

leads to the conclusion in this particular case that a proper sentence is one of time served.  Ms. 

Gump has been incarcerated for a period of time within the advisory Guidelines range of a term 

of imprisonment applicable in her case.  The conditions that this elderly, peaceful activist 

experienced while incarcerated, combined with her compliance for a lengthy period of time 

with conditions of supervised release, have surely by now communicated with sufficient force 

to her and to the world at large the Government’s position that the blue line at the Y-12 facility 

is sacrosanct. 

 This is not a case in which a fine would be appropriate.  Jean Gump and her co-

Defendants engaged in the conduct for which they were charged, tried and convicted out of 

passionate and even, in the cases of some of them, religious devotion to certain nonviolent 

principles.  They did not do what they did for gain; indeed, it is apparent that Ms. Gump and her 

co-Defendants did what they did at significant costs to themselves.  While the Presentence 

Investigation Report does state financial ability to pay a fine, it notes also that most of Ms. 

Gump’s and her husband’s wealth consists of the estimated value of their residence, and that 

“the defendant has minimal incoming financial support”.  None of the purposes of § 3553(a)(2) 

would be served by governmental confiscation of any of the accumulated wherewithal of two 

retirees. 

 If the Court concludes that an additional term of imprisonment is to be imposed in this 

case, Ms. Gump asks the Court to recommend that she be housed in the federal facility at 

Pekin, Illinois, where one of her relatives resides.  She asks also that she be allowed to self-

report for any additional term of imprisonment, having shown by her compliance with 
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conditions of supervised release and by her voluntary surrender that she is a responsible 

individual capable of making the necessary arrangements with the United States Marshals 

Service and the Bureau of Prisons. 

 If the Court decides that additional supervised release or a term of probation should be 

imposed in this case, then Ms. Gump requests that any applicable conditions allow her to keep 

her passport, in the event that some relatives will provide to her and her husband an 

opportunity or opportunities to travel.  She asks also that any requirement that she report to a 

probation officer require her to report in the judicial district in Michigan where she resides, as 

she has been doing.  

     Respectfully submitted, 

s/ Francis L. Lloyd, Jr. 

      LAW OFFICE OF FRANCIS L. LLOYD, JR. 
      9111 Cross Park Drive 

Suite D-200 
Knoxville, TN  37923 

      tel:  (865) 470-4077 
      fax: (865) 978-6504 
      E-Mail:  FLLloydJr@gmail.com  
      Counsel for the Defendant 
      Jean T. Gump 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

 I hereby certify that a copy of this document was filed electronically.  Notice of this filing 
will be sent by operation of the Court’s electronic filing system to all the parties indicated on 
the electronic filing receipt.  All other parties will be served by regular U.S. Mail.  Parties may 
access this filing through the Court’s electronic filing system. 
 
 In addition, undersigned counsel has delivered a chambers copy of this Sentencing 
Memorandum, together with the originals of Ms. Gump’s and others’ written statements, 
copies of which are attached this Sentencing Memorandum, to the chambers of Hon. H. Bruce 
Guyton, United States Magistrate Judge, this the 2nd day of September, 2011. 
 
 

s/ Francis L. Lloyd, Jr. 
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